
NOTICE

OF

MEETING

EMPLOYMENT PANEL
will meet on

THURSDAY, 18TH FEBRUARY, 2016

At 6.00 pm

in the

ASCOT AND BRAY - TOWN HALL, MAIDENHEAD

TO: MEMBERS OF THE EMPLOYMENT PANEL

COUNCILLORS DAVID BURBAGE (CHAIRMAN), PHILLIP BICKNELL (VICE-
CHAIRMAN), PAUL BRIMACOMBE, SIMON DUDLEY, DR LILLY EVANS, 
LYNNE JONES AND MJ SAUNDERS 

SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS
COUNCILLORS CHRISTINE BATESON, MALCOLM BEER, DAVID HILTON, 
JACK RANKIN, JOHN STORY, LISA TARGOWSKA, SIMON WERNER AND 
EDWARD WILSON

Karen Shepherd - Democratic Services Manager - Issued: Wednesday, 10 February 2016

Members of the Press and Public are welcome to attend Part I of this meeting. The agenda is available on the Council’s 
web site at www.rbwm.gov.uk or contact the Panel Administrator Karen Shepherd 01628 796529

Fire Alarm - In the event of the fire alarm sounding or other emergency, please leave the building quickly and calmly 
by the nearest exit.  Do not stop to collect personal belongings and do not use the lifts.  Congregate in the Town Hall 
Car Park, Park Street, Maidenhead (immediately adjacent to the Town Hall) and do not re-enter the building until told 
to do so by a member of staff.

Recording of Meetings – The Council allows the filming, recording and photography of public Council meetings. This 
may be undertaken by the Council itself, or any person attending the meeting. By entering the meeting room you are 
acknowledging that you may be audio or video recorded and that this recording will be available for public viewing on 
the RBWM website. If you have any questions regarding the council’s policy, please speak to the Democratic 
Services or Legal representative at the meeting.

Public Document Pack

http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/


AGENDA

PART I
ITEM SUBJECT PAGE 

NO

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence
 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any declarations of interest
 

5 - 6

3.  MINUTES

To consider the Part I minutes of the meeting held on 21 January 2016.
 

7 - 10

4.  NOTICE PERIOD IN PROBATION

To consider the above report
 

11 - 24

5.  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

To consider passing the following resolution:-

“That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the remainder of the meeting whilst discussion takes place 
on items 6-8 on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Paragraphs 1-7 of part I of Schedule 12A of the Act"
 



PART II

6.  MINUTES 

To consider the Part II minutes of the meeting held on 21 January 2016.

(Not for publication by virtue of Paragraph 2, 4 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972)

25 - 28

7.  EFFICIENCY SAVINGS - LIFE CHOICES 

To consider the above report

(Not for publication by virtue of Paragraph 2, 4 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972)

29 - 36

8.  APPOINTMENT OF DEPUTY DIRECTOR - OPERATIONS AND 
CUSTOMER SERVICES 

To consider the above report

(Not for publication by virtue of Paragraph 2, 4 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972)

37 - 42





MEMBERS’ GUIDANCE NOTE 
 

DECLARING INTERESTS IN MEETINGS 
 
 

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS (DPIs) 
 
 
DPIs include: 
 

 Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

 Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit made in respect of any 
expenses occurred in carrying out member duties or election expenses. 

 Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed 
which has not been fully discharged. 

 Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the relevant authority. 

 Any license to occupy land in the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer. 

 Any tenancy where the landlord is the relevant authority, and the tenant is a body in 
which the relevant person has a beneficial interest. 

 Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where  
a) that body has a piece of business or land in the area of the relevant authority, 
and  
b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class belonging to the relevant person exceeds one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class. 

 
PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS 
This is an interest which a reasonable fair minded and informed member of the public would 
reasonably believe is so significant that it harms or impairs your ability to judge the public 
interest. That is, your decision making is influenced by your interest that you are not able to 
impartially consider only relevant issues.   
 
DECLARING INTERESTS 
If you have not disclosed your interest in the register, you must make the declaration of 
interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as you are aware that you have a DPI or  
Prejudicial Interest.  If you have already disclosed the interest in your Register of Interests 
you are still required to disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter being discussed.  
A member with a DPI or Prejudicial Interest may make representations at the start of the 
item but  must not take part in discussion or vote at a meeting. The term ‘discussion’ 
has been taken to mean a discussion by the members of the committee or other body 
determining the issue.  You should notify Democratic Services before the meeting of your 
intention to speak. In order to avoid any accusations of taking part in the discussion or vote, 
you must move to the public area, having made your representations.  
 
If you have any queries then you should obtain advice from the Legal or Democratic Services 
Officer before participating in the meeting. 
 
If the interest declared has not been entered on to your Register of Interests, you must notify 
the Monitoring Officer in writing within the next 28 days following the meeting.  
 
 
 

5

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



EMPLOYMENT PANEL

THURSDAY, 21 JANUARY 2016

PRESENT: Councillors David Burbage (Chairman), Paul Brimacombe, Lynne Jones, 
MJ Saunders and Jack Rankin

Officers: Alison Alexander, Simon Fletcher, Terry Baldwin and Karen Shepherd

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for Absence were received from Councillors Bicknell, Dudley and Dr Evans.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

None received

MINUTES 

RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That the Part I minutes of the meeting held on 17 
December 2015 be approved.

IMPLEMENTATION OF THE NATIONAL LIVING WAGE (NLW) AND REVIEW OF 
PAY RATE FOR APPRENTICES 

Members considered changes to the council’s pay scales as a result of the 
introduction of the National Living Wage (NLW) and a change to the rate of pay for 
apprentices. Members noted that the NLW would come into force from April 2016. The 
report therefore proposed changes to pay scales, the financial implications of which 
were considered negligible. For centrally employed staff the increase to £7.20 per 
hour affected the bottom two pay points of Grade 1A, which affected 11 individuals in 
posts supported by the Ways into Work service. There was no immediate impact on 
schools.

Councillor Saunders arrived at 5.34pm.

Analysis of those affected indicated an additional cost of £425 per annum to apply 
£7.26 per hour rather than the NLW rate of £7.20. The cost of applying £7.20 per hour 
was £450 per annum including on costs. This increased to £875 per annum if £7.26 
pay point 3 was set as the minimum pay rate.
In line with the council’s desire to invest in the lowest paid staff and the minimal 
additional cost involved, it was recommended that the current pay point 3, £7.26 per 
hour was applied as the council’s minimum pay rate. It was also recommended that an 
annual increase of 45p be applied until the minimum pay rate reached £9 in 2020, 
unless the annual increase applied to the NLW exceeded 45p.

In relation to apprentices it was noted that the council currently employed three 
apprentices, with plans to recruit another four early in 2016. The council applied the 
national apprentice pay rates. Members considered the pay rates for other Berkshire 
local authorities which paid higher rates for apprentices. The council had struggled to 
attract apprentices aged 16-18. This, combined with the council’s wish to improve the 

7

Agenda Item 3



position of those on low pay, had resulted in a recommendation to increase the rate 
for its apprentices to £3.85 per hour. The additional salary costs for the four 
apprenticeships in 2016 would be around £5,150.

The Chairman commented that he did not believe he had had discussions with the 
Grow Our Own team on the principle of increasing the budget for this area, as stated 
in paragraph 4.3 of the report, however he did not believe it would be a fundamental 
problem. 

The Head of HR confirmed that as yet he did not have figures for the likely impact of 
the NLW on contract agreements, however Procurement were of the view that costs 
would increase. Further research would be necessary. The Chairman welcomed this 
as although there would be a minimal impact on staff employed directly by the 
borough, the impact on contracts was likely to be greater.

Councillor Brimacombe commented that Bracknell Forest had three grades of 
apprentice whereas the borough only had one grade. He felt that apprentices could 
provide a valuable contribution and receive valuable work experience if they were 
given meaningful work that took away less complex jobs from those more expensively 
paid. The Head of HR commented on an apprentice in the HR team who had done 
well and later joined the council on the lowest career grade. He explained that the 
Bracknell Forest approach was not a progressive one based on length of service; pay 
grades were determined by the role undertaken.

Councillor Rankin raised a concern about a bunching effect at the bottom of the pay 
grades. The Head of HR agreed that officers would need to look at pay differentials if 
bunching occurred; this would be kept under review.

Councillor Saunders questioned why the increase of 45p per year was only one-way 
adjusted. Members agreed to amend the second recommendation to address this 
point.

RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That Employment Panel:

i. Pay points 1 and 2 of Grade 1A are deleted with effect from 1 April 2016 
and staff on those pay points are moved to point 3.

ii. Apply an annual increase to meet or exceed the nationally agreed rate 
until the minimum pay rate reaches £9 in 2020.

iii. The minimum pay rate for apprentices is set at £3.85 per hour from 1 
February 2016 and is kept under review.

iv. Authority is delegated to the managing director and Head of HR to make 
further adjustments to the salary levels for apprentices where needed.

v. Employment Panel receive a further report later in 2016 regarding the 
implications of the National Living Wage on council pay scales.

APPROVAL OF THE UPDATED PAY POLICY STATEMENT FOR 2016/17 

Members considered approval of an updated Pay Policy Statement for 2016/17 as 
required by the Localism Act 2011. Members noted the changes as detailed in the 
report:

 The new structure of the Council agreed on 7 December 2015 – section 2.1

8



 The change to the lowest salary paid by the council as a result of the 
introduction of the national living wage from April 2016 – section 3.4

 The updating of pay ratios - section 4. 
 Updating of staff numbers – section 11.1

It was noted that there was a typographical error at paragraph 4.3 of the appendix, 
which should refer to the Managing Director.

Councillor Saunders suggested paragraph 3.4 of the appendix should read:

‘RBWM’s lowest paid employees are at or above the national living wage rate, 
£7.20 per hour from April 2016’.

The Chairman asked whether section 3.6-3.11 would be included and added to on an 
ongoing basis, or there was a cut-off date. The Head of HR agreed to check if there was a 
need to refer to all the historical information each year.

RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That Employment Panel:

i.Approve the Pay Policy Statement 2016/17 and recommend the updated 
statement to Council for approval on 23 February 2016, with the 
following minor amendments:

 Paragraph 4.3 to read ‘Using a remuneration figure for the 
Managing Director of £129,000 and a remuneration figure of 
£14,018 for the lowest paid employee, the pay multiple is 9.2.’

 Paragraph 3.4 to read: RBWM’s lowest paid employees are at 
or above the national living wage rate, £7.20 per hour from 
April 2016

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 

RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting 
whilst discussion took place on items 7-9 on the grounds that they involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 1-7 of part I of 
Schedule 12A of the Act"

The meeting, which began at 5.30 pm, finished at 6.18 pm

CHAIRMAN……………………………….

DATE………………………………..........

9



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 

                                      
 

Contains Confidential  
or Exempt Information  
 

NO – Part I  
 

Title Amendment to Notice Period for New Staff within their 
Probation Period 

Responsible Officer(s) Terry Baldwin, Head of HR; Alison Alexander, 
Managing Director and Strategic Director of Adult, 
Children and Health Services 

Contact officer, job 
title and phone number 

Terry Baldwin, Head of HR, 01628 79662 

Member reporting Cllr David Burbage 

For Consideration By Employment  Panel  

Date to be Considered 18 February 2016 

Implementation Date if  
Not Called In 

19 February 2016 

Affected Wards None 

 

REPORT SUMMARY 
 
1. This report proposes a change to the notice period applicable for new 

employees during their probation period. This recommendation is being made 
to comply with statutory notice periods for staff who are not confirmed as 
permanent within their probation period.   
 

 

If recommendations are adopted, how will residents benefit? 

Benefits to residents and reasons why they will benefit Dates by which 
residents can expect 
to notice a difference 

Value for money as unsuccessful employees will leave the 
Royal Borough after 1 weeks notice 

On going 

 
1. DETAILS OF RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
RECOMMENDATION: That Employment Panel: 
 
i. Approve the recommendation to provide statutory notice of one week, 

which may be paid in lieu, for any employee dismissed during their 
probation period. 

 
2.      REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) AND OPTIONS CONSIDERED  
 
2.1  All new staff recruited in the Royal Borough are subject to a probationary period 

usually of six months duration, although this can be extended if required. The 

Report for: 
ACTION 

11

Agenda Item 4



purpose of the probation period is for the new employee to demonstrate that he 
or she is suitable for the post they have been appointed to.  
  

2.2  The council’s probation procedure for non schools staff provides guidance to 
managers at all stages of the process and a copy of this procedure is attached 
as appendix A to the report. 

 
Notice Period during Probation 

2.3 The notice provision in all standard contracts of employment state: 
Your appointment is subject to a probationary period of 6 months (or 1 year for 
Y&C workers and NQSW).  During this period, you are expected to establish 
your suitability for the position and to cooperate fully in the probationary review 
process. RBWM can terminate your employment if you fail or are failing your 
probationary period. Refer to the Probationary Procedure in the HR section on 
the Council’s intranet. 

 
2.4 For the majority of employees, the probation period results in confirmation of 

appointment to a permanent position. For those that are not deemed as suitable 
for permanent employment during their probation period, contractual notice is 
given to the employee, which is specified as one month irrespective of the 
grade of the employee. There is no right of appeal against the decision to 
terminate employment during the probation period. 
 

2.5 Given that the decision not to confirm the employee as a permanent member of 
staff has already been taken, and there is no right of appeal, it could be 
detrimental to have that employee continue to work for the Royal Borough 
during their notice period. There is a risk of loss of attention to detail; 
demotivation of the employee and those who work with him/her; the impact 
he/she will have on colleagues, especially if the employee is in a managerial 
position, and even deliberate mistakes being made. 
 

2.6 For these reasons, it is common practice for employers to dismiss someone 
during probation and then pay them in lieu of notice. In the case of the Royal 
Borough, this would mean paying one months salary in lieu of notice. 
 
Practice across Berkshire Authorities 

2.7 All Berkshire Authorities were asked to comment on the notice period they 
provide for employees who are terminated during their probation period. Four 
Authorities responded and confirmed they give contractual notice which in the 
main is one month. There are no authorities currently providing one weeks 
notice for staff dismissed during probation although Slough said they may 
review their current practice and move to providing one weeks notice to 
unsuccessful staff. 

 
 Statutory Requirements 
2.7 The statutory provisions required by the Employment Rights Act 1996, state that 

employees, including those on a probationary period, are entitled to statutory 
notice of one week if they have been in continuous employment for one month 
and up to two years. The statutory notice period then increases to two weeks for 
2 years service rising to 12 weeks maximum after 12 or more year’s service.  

 
2.8 The Royal Borough provides notice periods for different grades of staff as 

outlined in table one below:  
Table one 

Grade Minimum Notice Maximum Notice 

Up to grade 11 One month 5 weeks for five years 
service, increasing by a 12



week for every year of 
service up to a 
maximum of 12 

Grades 11 to 13 Three months Three Months 

Senior Leadership 
Team 
(Heads of Service, 
Deputy Directors and 
Strategic Directors) 

Four months Four months 

 
Number of staff dismissed during probation 

2.9 A review of employees dismissed during probation since January 2014 has 
identified a total of six employees, including two in February 2016.  It is 
therefore not a material number failing their probation period. 
 
Options considered: Option 1 

2.9 Continue with the current arrangement and continue to pay one months’ 
contractual notice to all employees employed for three months or more whose 
employment is terminated during the probation period. 
This option is not recommended 
 

2.9 Option 2. 
For all new contracts issued on or after 19 February to new employees, provide 
statutory notice of one week, which may be paid in lieu, for staff dismissed 
during probation. This allows for unsuccessful staff to exit the organisation 
quickly while minimising the cost to the authority. 
This is the recommended option. 

 
3. KEY IMPLICATIONS  
  
3.1 
 

Defined 
Outcomes 

Unmet Met Exceeded Significantly 
Exceeded 

Date they 
should be 
delivered 
by 

The 
council 
acts swiftly 
to remove 
those 
employees 
who are 
unsuitable 
during their 
probation 
period.  

n/a Any employee 
starting from 
19 February 
onwards and  
dismissed 
during 
probation 
leaves after 1 
weeks notice 

n/a n/a 19 
February 
2016  

 
4.      FINANCIAL DETAILS 
 

Financial impact on the budget  
 
4.1 There are no additional financial implications resulting from this 

recommendation. If approved, the recommendation will result in a small salary 
saving for any employee dismissed during their probation period 

 
 13



5.  LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1  The council is required to provide the minimum contractual notice periods of 

one week for every year of service up to a maximum of 12 weeks, as set out in 
the Employment Rights Act 1996. The council already meets or exceeds its 
statutory obligation and the recommendation in this report is in line with 
statutory requirements.   

 
6.      VALUE FOR MONEY  
 
6.1    The recommendation to provide one weeks’ notice for staff dismissed during 

probation does not add to the overall costs for the council and will provide a 
small reduction in salary costs, thus providing value for money.  

 
7.  SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT APPRAISAL  
 
7.1   None. 
 
8.     RISK MANAGEMENT  
 
8.1  
 

Risks Uncontrolled Risk Controls Controlled Risk 

The Royal 
Borough is 
not an 
attractive 
employer 
to new 
recruits 
 

 New recruits will 
be reassured of 
the support and 
training available 
to them to help 
them pass their 
probation. The 
number of staff 
dismissed during 
probation is very 
low.  

 

 
9.      LINKS TO STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES  
 
9.1 The recommendation regarding notice periods during probation links to the 

following: 
 

 Residents First  
 
Value for Money   
 
Equipping Ourselves for the Future  

 Equipping Our Workforce  

 
10.  EQUALITIES, HUMAN RIGHTS AND COMMUNITY COHESION  
 
10.1  No EQIA was undertaken, as notice periods during probation is a statutory 

requirement.  
 
11.    STAFFING/WORKFORCE AND ACCOMMODATION IMPLICATIONS  
 
11.1  No impact on current staff. 
 
 
 

14



12.    PROPERTY AND ASSETS  
 
12.1  None.  
 
13.    ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
13.1 None 
 
14.   CONSULTATION  
 
14.1 CMT were consulted regarding the recommended approach.  
 
15.   TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION  
 
15.1 It is proposed to apply the change from 19 February 2016 for new employees to 

the Royal Borough 
 
16.    APPENDICES  
 
16.1  Appendix 1 – Probationary period policy 
 
17.    BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
17.1  None. 
 
18. CONSULTATION (MANDATORY)  
 

Name of  
consultee  

Post held and  
Department  

Date 
sent 

Date  
received  

See comments  
in paragraph:  

Internal      

Cllr Burbage Leader of the 
Council 

 10/2/16  

Alison 
Alexander 

MD/CMT 03/02/20
16 

05/02/20
16 

 

Simon Fletcher, 
Russell 
O’Keefe 

Strategic 
Directors 

05/02/20
16 

  

     

     

     

External      

     

 
 
 
REPORT HISTORY  
 

Decision type: Urgency item? 

Non-key decision  
 

No  
 

Full name of report 
author 

Job title Full contact no: 

Terry Baldwin Head of HR 01628 796992 

 

15



Document Title: Probationary Period & Form  Version: 2.0.0 
Author:  Sharon Haines  Last Updated: Sept 2013 
Approval Date:  Review Date:  Sept 2014 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ROYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR AND MAIDENHEAD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROBATIONARY PERIOD POLICY 
AND FORM  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Covers:  

 Introduction 

 Appointment 

 Length of Probation 

 Progress of Probation 

 Mid-Point of Probation 

 Months 5 and 6 

 Form  

 Example Letter 
 

 

16



Document Title: Probationary Period & Form  Version: 2.0.0 
Author:  Sharon Haines  Last Updated: Sept 2013 
Approval Date:  Review Date:  Sept 2014 
 

ROYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR AND MAIDENHEAD 
 
 

PROBATIONARY PERIOD POLICY 
AND FORM 

 
 
1. Introduction 
 
All new staff recruited in the Borough will be subject to the following 
probationary procedure, except for staff on teachers’ conditions of service who 
are subject to the Newly Qualified Teacher procedure. 
 
The purpose of the probation period is for the new employee to demonstrate 
that he or she is suitable for the post they have been appointed to. The 
probation period is part of the recruitment and selection process.  Please note 
that within Social Care this would include successful completion of the 
Induction and Foundation Training programmes. 
 
The employee’s line manager is responsible for ensuring that the new 
employee is given appropriate supervision, guidance and training, making 
sure that they understand the council’s CREATE values.  Regular 1-2-1 
interviews should take place. (CREATE does not apply to schools). 
 
Advice and guidance to any new employee and their manager at any stage of 
the probationary period is available from the HR Business Partner Team. 

 
2. Appointment 
 
On appointment the staff member should be provided with a full local 
induction programme.  In addition a copy of the job accountabilities and a full 
explanation of his or her responsibilities and functions, and the management 
structure of the service concerned.  The council’s CREATE values should be 
explained and implemented. 
 
2.1   Introductory Probation Meeting 
 
In the introductory meeting the line manager should:  
 

a) Clarify the duties and responsibilities of the new employee in line with 
the job accountabilities.  

 
This should include: 
 

 Explaining key aspects of the role and structure of the service 

 Skills/competences required/that must be acquired 

 Standards of work expected (quality and quantity 

 Deadlines to be met 

17



Document Title: Probationary Period & Form  Version: 2.0.0 
Author:  Sharon Haines  Last Updated: Sept 2013 
Approval Date:  Review Date:  Sept 2014 
 

 Behaviour/conduct (including timekeeping and attendance) 

 Working relationships 

 Working environment 

 Training needs 

 Any other issues specific to the role/grade 
 

b) Explain how objectives will be monitored and measured and how 
frequently this must be done.   

 
c)  Identify any potential training needs. 

 
d) Agree and set dates for further review during the probation period. 

 
2.2  Objective Setting 

 

 As part of the probation/induction period the employee will be set 
objectives of what should be achieved in the role within the employee’s 
probationary period to ensure that they have a full understanding of the 
requirements of the post, the service etc.  These objectives should be 
agreed soon after appointment in a discussion between the employee 
and line manager. 

 

 The objectives should be specific to the activities of the new employee 
and should be clearly defined to avoid misinterpretation. 

 

 The objectives should be clear and measurable.  Line Managers should 
therefore indicate how the objectives will be measured and what 
indicators they will use to check whether objectives have been met. 

 

 The objectives set during the probation period should be realistic and 
commensurate with the grade of the post.  Some work may extend 
beyond the probationary period and in this case, it may be necessary to 
break the tasks/project down to set realistic objectives. 

 

 The Line Manager shall give the employee the appropriate 
support/guidance (including training) necessary to help them achieve 
set objectives. 

 

 The objectives will be linked to a reasonable timescale.  The Line 
Manager shall arrange review meetings at appropriate points 
throughout the probation period to reflect the timescale of the 
objectives set. 

 

 If this is the final meeting, objectives should match Appraisal Objectives 
(see Section 6).  

18



Document Title: Probationary Period & Form  Version: 2.0.0 
Author:  Sharon Haines  Last Updated: Sept 2013 
Approval Date:  Review Date:  Sept 2014 
 

 
3. Length of Probation 
 
The probationary period should normally be for six months, but it may in some 
cases be extended.  

 
4. Progress of Probation Period 
 
The Line Manager should meet with the new employee regularly to have 1-2-1 
discussions.  If there are any concerns, the new employee should be informed 
as soon as possible and be given advice and assistance to rectify it, by clear 
instructions.   
 

 When monitoring the employee’s progress, the following points should 
be borne in mind: 

 

 Work output – is the employee making steady progress in the amount 
of work they are undertaking? 

 

 Work quality – is the employee making satisfactory progress in the 
production of work which is to an acceptable standard considering the 
employee’s time and experience in the job? 

 

 Work level – is the employee demonstrating that they are capable of 
performing at the level which is expected of them? 

 

 Attendance – what is the employee’s record for punctuality, attendance 
and sickness absence?  Please consult the HR Business Partner Team 
if there is cause for concern. 

 
4.1   Reviews  

 
During the probation period, reviews should be taking place to ensure regular 
two way communication between the Line Manager and employee, allowing 
timely action to be taken in the early stages of the appointment.  Formal 
reviews should be set up in advance so that both parties have time to prepare 
for them and to ensure that meetings remain free of interruptions. 
 
Line managers are advised to hold frequent informal meetings, which should 
be documented in order to ensure a good working relationship and feedback 
on the employee’s progress.  The frequency of these meetings should be 
determined locally, according to the needs of the employee and service. 
 
As part of the review line managers should: 
 

 Praise good performance/achievements so far 

 Review timekeeping/attendance, including sickness absence 

19



Document Title: Probationary Period & Form  Version: 2.0.0 
Author:  Sharon Haines  Last Updated: Sept 2013 
Approval Date:  Review Date:  Sept 2014 
 

 Discuss the employee’s performance to date against the objectives set 
at introductory probation meeting 

 Review/agree training/development needs, if necessary 

 Provide constructive feedback on progress 

 Identify aspects of performance/conduct that need improving and how 

 Explore problems the employee has encountered in their role 

 Provide guidance/support as appropriate, e.g., mentoring 

 Introduce/agree any changes to the objectives set 

 Set the next review meeting (if applicable) 
 
It is the line manager’s responsibility to ensure that reviews are conducted 
within the timescale described in the policy.  If any issues or concerns are 
identified, managers should seek advice from HR. 
 
Written documents are important in the probation period as it will provide very 
helpful information for staff development when the probation period is 
completed successfully.   Equally, it will indicate clearly why an appointment is 
not to be confirmed in the case of an unsuccessful probation. 

 
4.2    Dealing with Unsatisfactory Performance  

 
Line Managers should seek advice from the HR Business Partner Team 
whenever an employee’s performance/conduct gives cause for concern at the 
earliest opportunity. 
 
Where issues with meeting the appropriate standard(s) are highlighted and/or 
needs for relevant training identified, appropriate opportunity/support should 
be provided to improve performance. 
 
The line manager should meet with the employee to: 
 

 Discuss any problems identified 

 Explain what aspects of the work/conduct is not considered satisfactory  

 Explain what objectives/standards are not met and the shortfall between 
standards and timescales expected of the employee and those achieved 

 What remedial guidance and training will be provided 

 Give clear early warnings of what may happen if required standards are 
not met 

 Give clear indications of any necessary improvements 

 Agree a course of remedial action and timescales 

 Record the outcome of the meeting in writing and give a copy to the 
employee 

 
5. Mid-point of Probation Period 
 
At the mid-point of probation period (normally after 3 months) the Line 
Manager should meet with the new employee to discuss their progress in a 
formal meeting.   

20



Document Title: Probationary Period & Form  Version: 2.0.0 
Author:  Sharon Haines  Last Updated: Sept 2013 
Approval Date:  Review Date:  Sept 2014 
 

     
5.1 Purpose 
 
To establish if there are any issues that need to be addressed, but also to act 
as a prompter to the Line Manager that the employee is now midway and a 
review needs to take place before moving forward into the 2nd phase of the 
probationary period process. 
 
5.2  Expectations at mid-point 

 
Within the initial 3 months the basics of the role should be under control.   
Ownership of the role, competence of the role and developing working 
relationships should be demonstrated. 
 
5.3 Format of mid-point review 
 

 The review should recap on the outcome of previous 1-2-1’s, invite 
employee to talk about the past 3 months and review any issues and 
improvements that they have made (issues or concerns raised should 
be documented). 

 

 The Line Manager should give feedback on performance over the past 
3 months (providing specific examples if possible). 

 

 Discuss issues raised (specific actions or outcomes should be 
documented). 

 

 Set expectations for the next 3 months which will be reviewed at the 
next performance review (which should be in month 5). 

 

 End on a positive note. At this point, please contact a member of the 
HR Business Partner Team if there are any issues or concerns to 
discuss, if not done so before. 

 

 If, during this period, the Line Manager finds the new employee to not 
be suitable for the position, the Head of Service may dismiss the staff 
member at this stage, having first consulted the HR Business Partner 
Team and any trade union representative concerned.  A notice of the 
termination of contract will be given in accord with the employment 
contract. 

 

6. Months 5 and 6 
 
If the new employee is successful in completing the probationary period, the 
Line Manager will notify the staff member in writing, copying in the Head of 
Service and the HR Business Partner Team.  An example letter is included for 
your use, please send a copy to the HR Business Partner Team. 
 

21



Document Title: Probationary Period & Form  Version: 2.0.0 
Author:  Sharon Haines  Last Updated: Sept 2013 
Approval Date:  Review Date:  Sept 2014 
 

There is no right of appeal against being dismissed whilst on probation.  If an 
employee has a concern that they are not being treated fairly during 
probationary period by the Line Manager, a grievance should be raised under 
the Borough’s Grievance Procedure. 
 

7.  Probation Period Assessment Form 
 
Employee Name:  
Job Title:  
Directorate:  
Service:  
Team:  
Manager:  
Date: 3 month/6 month review (delete)  

 

 Improvement 
Required 

Satisfactory Good Excellent Outstanding 

Quality and accuracy 
of work 

     

Efficiency and work 
output 

     

Attendance 
     

Timekeeping 
     

Work Relationships 
(teamwork and 
communication skills) 

     

CREATE values and 
behaviours shown  

     

Where any areas require improvement give details below: 

Outline any plans to improve performance: 

22



Document Title: Probationary Period & Form  Version: 2.0.0 
Author:  Sharon Haines  Last Updated: Sept 2013 
Approval Date:  Review Date:  Sept 2014 
 

Has the employee undergone any training?  Does the employee require any further 
training or development to improve current performance? 

Outline the employee’s views on the job, work environment and working conditions: 

Summary of the employee’s overall performance including achievements: 

Please confirm that objectives have been set to be reviewed in line with the appraisal 
cycle:  (Value for Money, Residents first, Equipping ourselves for the future and 
Delivering together): 
 

Is the employee’s appointment to be confirmed (if 
final probation meeting)? 

         YES       NO 

If NO, give details of the issues below: 
 
 

Should the employee’s probationary period be 
extended to allow time for improvement (if final 
probation meeting)? 

           YES       NO 

If yes, please specify the date on which the employee will complete the extended period 
and specify the improvement required and how this will be achieved: 

23



Document Title: Probationary Period & Form  Version: 2.0.0 
Author:  Sharon Haines  Last Updated: Sept 2013 
Approval Date:  Review Date:  Sept 2014 
 

New probation completion date (If applicable) 
 

Employee’s signature 
 

Manager’s signature 
 

Date 
 

 
8.  Example Letter 
 
Please send a copy to the HR Team. 

 
Private & Confidential 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dear  
  
Re:  Completion of probationary period 
 
I am writing to confirm that you have successfully completed your 6 month 
probationary period and therefore I have pleasure in confirming your 
appointment as a permanent member of staff in the XX Service. 
 
In all other respects your terms and conditions remain unchanged. 
  
May we take this opportunity to congratulate you and wish you continued 
success in your career with RBWM. 
 
Please confirm your receipt of this letter, by signing and returning to HR the 
enclosed copy. 
 
 
Yours sincerely 

 
 
 
I hereby accept the amended contract described above and on the conditions 
stated. 
       
Signed ............................................................ 
     
Date ............................................................... 

24



Document is Restricted

25

Agenda Item 6
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

29

Agenda Item 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

37

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes
	4 Notice Period in Probation
	meetings_160218_ep_probation.pdf
	meetings_160218_ep_probation_appx.pdf

	6 Minutes
	7 Efficiency Savings - Life Choices
	8 Appointment of Deputy Director - Operations and Customer Services

